
 

AGENDA FOR 
 

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 

 
Contact: Michael Cunliffe 
Direct Line: 0161 253 5399 

E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk 
Web Site:  www.bury.gov.uk 

 
 
To: All Members of Planning Control Committee 

 (Subject to confirmation at the Council AGM) 
Councillors : G McGill (Chair), S Arif, C Boles, D Duncalfe, 

D Green, J Harris, M Hayes, D Quinn, S Thorpe, D Vernon 
and M Walsh 

 

Dear Member/Colleague 
 
Planning Control Committee 

 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control Committee 

which will be held as follows:- 
 

Date: Tuesday, 31 May 2022 

Place:  Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 

appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related 
report should be contacted. 

Notes:  

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider whether they 
have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if so, to formally declare 
that interest. 
 

3   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 26TH APRIL 2022 (Pages 3 - 

6) 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 22nd March 2022 are attached. 

 

4   PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 7 - 64) 

 
Reports attached. 

 

5   DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 65 - 78) 

 
A report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated planning 
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is attached. 

 

6   PLANNING APPEALS (Pages 79 - 82) 

 
A report from the Head of Development Management on all Planning appeal 
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is attached. 

 

7   URGENT BUSINESS   

 
Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may 
be considered as a matter of urgency. 

 



 

 

1 

 

 Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 26 April 2022 

 
 Present: Councillor G McGill (in the Chair) 

Councillors N Boroda, J Harris, M Hayes, J Lancaster, D Quinn, 
C Tegolo and D Vernon 
 

 Public Attendance: 
 

8 members of the public were present at the meeting. 

 Apologies for Absence: 
 

Councillor C Boles 
 

 
PCC.1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor C Boles. 

 
PCC.2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

Councillor J Lancaster declared a personal interest in planning application 68038 as 
she was a member of the Ainsworth Community Association. 

 
Councillor Lancaster left the meeting during deliberation of the application. 
 

PCC.3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 22ND MARCH 2022  

 
Delegated decision: 

 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 22nd March 2022 be approved as a correct 

record and signed by the Chair.  
 

PCC.4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to 

applications for planning permission.  
 

There was supplementary information to add in respect of application numbers 67257, 
67553 and 68038. 
 

The Committee heard representations from applicants and objectors in respect of 
applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes for the speaker. 

 
Delegated decisions: 

 
1. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 

report and any supplementary information submitted, subject to the conditions 
included:- 

 

223A Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1JE 

Retrospective change of use from 1st floor residential flat (C3 use) to tattoo/beauty 

business (Class E) 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Control Committee, 26 April 2022  

 
 

 

2 

 
2. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 

report and any supplementary information submitted and subject to the 
conditions included with an additional condition related to the retention of the 

materials and their reuse for of the existing dry stone wall fronting the highway:- 
 
Land adjacent 2 Tanners Street, Ramsbottom, BL0 9ES 

Erection of one dwelling with associated garage, parking/manoeuvring space and 
garden curtilage, to be accessed via Tanners Street 

 
3. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 

report and any supplementary information submitted, subject to the conditions 
included:- 

 
22 Cockey Moor Road, Radcliffe, Bury, BL8 2HB 

Erection of detached dwelling 

 
PCC.5  DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent 
planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers since the last 

meeting of the Planning Control Committee. 
 
Delegated decision: 

 
That the report and appendices be noted.  

 
PCC.6  PLANNING APPEALS  

 

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent 
Planning Appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee.  

 
Delegated decision: 

 

That the report and appendices be noted.  
 

PCC.7  REVIEW OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT VALIDATION CHECKLIST 
CRITERIA  

 

report from the Head of Development Management outlined the review of the Council’s 
local checklists that are required for the validation process of planning applications 

submitted. 
 
Delegated decision: 

 
That the report be noted.  

 
PCC.8  URGENT BUSINESS  

 

Page 4



 Planning Control Committee, 26 April 2022 
 
 

 
3 

No urgent business was reported. 
 

 
 
 

 
COUNCILLOR G MCGILL 

Chair  

 
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00pm and ended at 7.53pm) 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



  
 

 
Title 
 

 
Planning Applications 

To: 
 

Planning Control Committee 

On: 
 

31 May 2022 

By: 
 

Development Manager 

Status: 
 

For Publication 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the 
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved. 
 
My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports. 
 
This report has the following implications 
 
Township Forum/ Ward: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Policy: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Resources: 
 

Not generally applicable. 

Equality Act 2010:  All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and 
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for: 
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and person who do not share it; 
The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.    
    
Human Rights:  All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 
 
Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the 
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments. 
 
Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a 
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include 
a person's home, and other land and business assets. 
 
In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and 
all material planning considerations, I have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon 
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First 
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is 
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the 
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council 
under the Town & Country Planning Acts. 
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on 
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the 
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions. 
 
 
 
Development Manager 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith. 
2. Certificates relating to the ownership. 
3. Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties. 
4. Responses from Consultees. 
 
 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT 
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE. 
 

Page 8



 
01  Township Forum - Ward:  Ramsbottom and Tottington - 

Ramsbottom 
App No.   65844 

 
  Location: Former Mondi/Holcombe Mill, Bridge Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0BS 
  Proposal: Erection of 73 no. dwellings including the retention and conversion of 2 

existing buildings to residential use (5 no. units), the retention of a 
chimney and the demolition of a derelict building, together with 
engineering operations to create a development platform and associated 
parking, landscaping, drainage, the layout of internal estate roads and 
footways and other associated works 

  Recommendation: Minded to Approve  Site 
Visit: 

Y 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
02  Township Forum - Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth App No.   67400 
 
  Location: Hollins House Farm, 247 Hollins Lane, Bury, BL9 8AS 
  Proposal: Conversion of existing single storey barn to form 1 no. dwelling and 

replacement of two storey barn with an attached two storey 1 no. dwelling 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 65844

Former Mondi/Holcombe Mill,
Bridge Street, Ramsbottom



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Square River Bridge

Bridge

Weir

LB

FB
Sluice Sluice

Sluice

Ramsbottom

Chimney

LB

TCB
LB

War Memorial

40

Depot

Tanks

Bowling Green

Cricket Ground

Sports Facility

Riverside Ground

(Football Pitch)

Pavilion

G
ar

ag
e

4

Works
Empire

20

Engine

Forge

The

1 to 11

The Mill

The Gate House 1 to 6

1 
to

 6

The Cornerhouse

House

The Old

99

1

C
obden

M
ew

s

1 to
 3

The Triangle

Court

Damar

58

60

Nursery

The

Dye House
1 3

Weavers

Cottages

4

Kay Brow

38
40

Yard

41

35

17

31

21

11
6

3
1 to 4

P
eel C

ourt

43

El Sub Sta

48

31

Depot

7
3

139 to 11

5

Depot

1

PH

1
1

1

Waterside Mill
Peel Bridge Mill

Depot

9d
9c

9e

9b

9

15

PW

9a

11

5

SB

8

2

5 
to

 1
1

2 to 8

2597

Tank

Railway

18 to 20

(PH) 2

Garage

Works

Hotel

1 0

12

1
2

R
a m

sb
o

tto
m

 S
t a

t io
n

1
4

8 10

3
3

1

40

26

42

28

21

1
1

13
c

13
a

1

2

St Paul's Church

CHURCH STREET

10

Bank
31

1
3f

13

9

2 
to

 8

54

58
56

29
27

RAMSBOTTOM

River Irwell

R
i ver I rw

e ll

Sinks

Allot Gdns

Car Park

Weir

SM

SM

SM

Builders Yard

Sta

El

El Sub Sta

Car

Park

Car Park

Sub

Car Park

Acre Bottom

Bridge

Reservoir

Square

T
e

r race s

SP

SP

SP SP

LCs

SP

E
as

t L
a

nc
a

s h
i r

e  
R

ai
lw

a
y

SP

SP

Wr Pt

SP

E
V

E
R

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

P
A

T
M

O
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
A

L
A

T
IN

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

IRWELL STREET

R
A

I L
W

A
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

BRIDGE STREET

KING STREET

UNION STREET

C
O

B
D

E
N

 M
I L

L
 C

O
U

R
T

BROW

S
T

R
E

E
T

STEAD STREET

PEEL

RIVER

K
E

N
Y

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

 P
A

U
L
' S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

G
A

R
D

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
R

O
W

 L
A

N
E

Path (um)

WBPosts

127.6m

135.9m

127.5m

128.6m

Viewpoints
 

1

2

3

5

4
6

Page 11



65844 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 

 

Page 12



Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 

Page 13

65844



Photo 5 

 

Photo 6 

 

Page 14

65844



Page 15



P
age 16



P
age 17



P
age 18



P
age 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



  
 
Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - 

Ramsbottom 
Item   01 

 
Applicant:  Eccleston Homes Limited 
 
Location: Former Mondi/Holcombe Mill, Bridge Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0BS 

 
Proposal: Erection of 73 no. dwellings including the retention and conversion of 2 existing 

buildings to residential use (5 no. units), the retention of a chimney and the 
demolition of a derelict building, together with engineering operations to create a 
development platform and associated parking, landscaping, drainage, the layout of 
internal estate roads and footways and other associated works 

 
Application Ref:   65844/Full Target Date:  17/12/2020 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 

The Development Manager has requested a site visit. 
 
Description 
The site comprises a former paper mill close to the town centre of Ramsbottom, which was 
cleared of all but 3 buildings and the chimney in 2012. Within the site, the chimney and 3 
buildings retained are located in the Ramsbottom Conservation Area, with the remainder of 
site being outside the Conservation Area. 
 
Existing buildings within the site are two storeys in height and constructed from stone with 
slate roof and the chimney is constructed from red brick. Due to health and safety concerns, 
the upper 15 metres of the chimney was removed in 2015 to make it safe.  
  
The site contains a large concrete hardstanding and there is a culvert that runs north to 
south through the site. The land to the south is grassed with two large bunds.  
 
There are two vehicular accesses onto Bridge Street from the main part of the site.  
There is an access road, which leads to a car park associated with the site and continues to 
the football and cricket clubs, the second is gated and unused. 
 
Peel Brow/Bridge Street forms the boundary to the north with public open space and the 
River Irwell beyond. The ELR is located to the west with a car park and supermarkets and 
the town centre beyond. The Cricket club and football club are located to the south of the 
site. To the east is the River Irwell, a wooded area and residential properties beyond. The 
land to the east slopes steeply and is much higher than the application site.  
 
Proposed development 
The proposed development involves the: 

• erection of 73 dwellings including the retention and conversion of 2 existing buildings to 
residential use; 

• the retention of the chimney; 

• the demolition of a derelict building; 

• engineering operations to create a development platform; 

• associated works including parking, landscaping, drainage 
 
The proposed development would provide a mix of apartments, terraced, semi-detached 
and detached dwellings, which would be two and three storeys in height. The proposed 
dwellings would be constructed from reconstituted stone and render with a tile roof.  
 
Public open space would be provided on site in 2 areas - next to the River Irwell and 
adjacent to the main access road and existing buildings.  

Page 25



 
The proposed development would be accessed from the existing road adjacent to the East 
Lancashire Railway (ELR) with a secondary emergency access from Bridge Street/Peel 
Brow. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
Pre-application enquiries  
02214/E - Redevelopment of site to include 2322 m2 (approx) A1 food store, 64 no. 
residential units ranging from 3/4 bed terrace and detached houses to 2 bed cottages and 
58 no. retirement units/apartments at Mondi Mill, Ramsbottom. Response issued - 28 
November 2018 
Redevelopment of the site for 83 dwellings at Mondi Mill, Ramsbottom. Response issued - 
28 January 2020 
 
Planning applications 
43908 - Temporary siting of 2 cabins for use as offices at Mondi Paper Mill, Holcombe Mill, 
Peel Bridge, Ramsbottom. Approved with conditions - 2 March 2005 
 
44183 - Single storey extension adjoining existing offices opposite car park. New reception, 
kitchen and toilets at Mondi Paper Mill, Holcombe Mill, Peel Bridge, Ramsbottom. Approved 
with conditions - 13 April 2005 
 
54265 - Demolition of buildings Nos 2 - 11, 13 & 14 at Holcombe Mill, Peel Bridge, 
Ramsbottom. Approved with conditions - 16 January 2012. 
 
54266 - Conservation area consent for demolition of all buildings at Holcombe Mill, Peel 
Bridge, Ramsbottom. Withdrawn - 9 December 2011. 
 
58287 - Demolition of the top 15 metres of the former Mondi Mill chimney at former Mondi 
Mill site, Bridge Street, Ramsbottom. Approved with conditions - 17 March 2015. 
 
65217 - Erection of 83 no. dwellings, retention of chimney & 2 no. existing buildings 
(designated for commercial use) and demolition of derelict building at Former Mondi 
Mill/Holcombe Mill, Bridge Street, Ramsbottom. Withdrawn - 6 May 2020. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 22 September 2020 and a 
press notice was published in the Bury Times on 1 October 2020. Site notices were posted 
on 7 October 2020. 
 
2 letters of support have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• Fantastic news. The current site is a blot on the landscape. The land is wasted and 
becoming dangerous. 

• The proposal will bring much needed investment, families and spending into 
Ramsbottom at a time when the economy is in dire straits. 

• This is a change for the better and will provide much needed homes for people. 

• Brilliant - a company working to rid Ramsbottom of an eyesore. 
 
22 letters of objection, which have raised the following issues: 

• Object. The Council said in 2015 that they would never build on flood plains again. This 
site is located in the flood plain. 

• Under normal circumstances (pre-lockdown) Bury New Road is very congested at rush 
hour as this is one of a few accesses into and out of Ramsbottom. Adding another 72 
homes will make this situation worse. 

• Will additional funding be provided for schools, doctors or leisure facilities? 

• Object on traffic grounds as there are hundreds of cars and hgvs using the road already. 
The water in my washing up bowl ripples due to the traffic and cannot be doing the 
structure of the road any good. 

• A strong desire was expressed at a public meeting to see the site developed as a mixed 
Page 26



use development with new affordable homes, commercial space and parking. The sole 
residential development conflicts with Policy EC2/1 of the UDP. 

• There is a serious lack of affordable housing in Ramsbottom and the lack of any on this 
site conflicts with Policy H4/1 of the UDP. The viability report provides no evidence for 
the estimated costs of developing the site and could make a profit of £3,853,157 if 
affordable housing was provided. 

• The proposed development should invest in improvements to community infrastructure 
such as a path along the river connecting this new housing to Nuttall Park. No mitigation 
of the highways issues is proposed.  

• It is disappointing that the developer did not engage with the community before the 
statutory consultation by Bury Council.  

• It is irresponsible to build on a flood plain unless the Council plans to build flood 
defences. 

• Ramsbottom does not have the infrastructure to support the traffic generated by this 
development.  

• The site is a flood plain and putting houses on it will increase the speed in which water 
passes to the River Irwell and will send large volumes of water downstream. 

• There are a number of rare species of bird that live along the riverbank, which would 
impact upon ecology. 

• There are already 2-3 new housing developments in Ramsbottom. Another is not 
needed. 

• Just leave Ramsbottom alone and if the site is to be developed, turn it into something 
that will benefit the town, not destroy it. 

• If anyone approves of this development they must be either shareholders, or getting 
their pockets lined by the company in question. 

• After so many previous objections why are Bury council allowing this proposal again?  

• Listen to the wishes of the electorate you swore to serve, (yes you are our public 
servants, we are not your chattel or proles to subjugate) and hang your heads in shame! 

• The developer should be required to reinstate the defunct riverside path to provide 
access for walkers/cyclists along the river to Nuttall Park. 

• The application has been submitted during a regional lockdown and there has not been 
a town consultation. The public cannot gain access to the site to inspect it as it is closed 
off.  

• The proposed development is located on a flood plain and the site sits at a low level. 
Flood water rises up from drains/sewers as well as from the river when the banks 
overflow. If the proposed development can be stopped from flooding, it will pass water 
downstream which will impact on Summerseat. 

• Will the occupiers of these houses be told that they are on a flood plain? Will they be 
able to get insurance? 

• It is the public who have to pay when homes and areas are flooded the remedial work is 
tax payer funded and frankly tax payers are fed up with having to bankroll developers 
and planning departments who waive plans through without proper analysis or thought 
re: flood plains. 

• We build the smallest houses per square foot in Europe. This planned housing estate 
will be made up of 72 small houses/dwellings packed densely into a small area.  There 
are likely to be more than  300 people living on this planned housing estate plus their 
visitors all located in an already busy and crowded  town centre. Where is the public 
health report of the impact of this densely populated housing estate on an already busy 
town centre and the health of its existing population? 

• What does the developer intend to do about the pollution levels associated with this 
housing estate? 

• Ramsbottom does not have a police station, bank and the GP and dental practices are 
unable to absorb the 300 new patients from this development. There are insufficient 
places within schools. This must be addressed by the developer. 

• There should be a limit on the number of houses that a developer can build in an area. 
Large parts of Ramsbottom are designated a conservation area. We are being over run 
by this developer and its small identikit mock tudor housing. The buildings and materials 
being used are not in line with existing housing materials the planned dwellings are 

Page 27



cramped, tall and narrow. Render and artificial slates are not in keeping with a 
conservation area. 

• Current utilities do not have capacity currently.  

• Conduct of the Planning Officer/Planning Department - Site Visit and Ramsbottom Visit 
by the Planning Officer from Bury Council during a Lock Down. Why is Bury MBC 
entertaining  for  a second time an application from this developer for a major housing 
estate in a small town during a region wide lockdown ? 

• The proposal would have a negative impact upon the ELR, football and cricket clubs 
and tourist events in the town and this site would be better used as parking to support 
these events.  

• The proposed design is not in keeping with the conservation area. 

• The proposal represents a lost opportunity. The choice of design and materials is 
incongruous, being off the peg, utility, 'mock tudor' style of houses  built in a mixture of 
reconstituted stone and rendered breeze block. A generic an unimaginative design, 
appropriate for suburbia but is not fit for a 19th century conservation area. 

• If the talks about a metrolink extension to Rawtenstall succeed, where would everyone 
park? The mondi site would be a good place for a car park. 

• Why can't the site be compulsory purchased? 
 
The neighbouring properties and objectors were notified of revised plans on 18 February 
2021. 
 
3 letters of support have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• I support this application as the site is a blot on the landscape as you come into 
Ramsbottom. 

• People are obsessed with traffic. The proposal will lead to 72 families who will be able to 
walk to shops and restaurants in Ramsbottom and will bring a nice feel to the town. 

• Support this development. If more housing is needed, it makes sense to construct it on 
brownfield sites. 

• Additional housing will bring more revenue into Ramsbottom and assist the centre in 
continuing to succeed. 

 
17 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• Strongly object as the transport infrastructure in Ramsbottom cannot support the 
additional houses. 

• Disappointing to see that the developer continues to refuse to accept their obligation for 
Section 106 contributions or provide affordable housing. 

• The comments submitted previously still apply. 

• Objection based on flood risk. 

• The principle access to the site should be as far away from Bridge Street level crossing 
as possible to prevent vehicles queuing over it 

• Houses at the southern end of the site must be discouraged from planting high hedges 
against the railway boundary as this would obstruct the sighting of danger signals to 
train crew and staff. 

• The developer must ensure that no drainage from hard areas can be directed towards 
the railway 

• The Environment Agency's comments confirm that the development is on a flood plain, 
which poses a danger of harm to residents of the development and emergency services 
personnel. There is only one road in and out of this proposed development which will 
flood and hinder residents being evacuated and endanger emergency services 
personnel. It is stated that it might be better to leave residents cut off in their flooded 
homes. This remains the position. There is no emergency plan. 

• There are bats in 2 of the buildings to be converted, which are legally protected. The 
proposed conversion of the buildings would result in offences being committed. 

• There are otters and kingfishers in close proximity to the site, which are protected. A 
development of this site could recklessly disturb the protected species in breach of the 
law.  

• The River Irwell will be harmed by pollution of debris, dust and rubbish.  
Page 28



• There are large scale invasive species on site and the report confirms it is not possible 
to eradicate it given its scale. 

• No surface water drainage scheme has been submitted. All of the hardstanding on the 
development will cause greater flooding. 

• Up to 160 extra cars plus their visitors will cause greater pollution and congestion 

• The site should be converted to a community use. 

• It is confirmed that there is to be no S.106 contribution or affordable housing. No 
reasoning or costings are supplied for this facile bald assertion by the developer so yet 
again existing local people are expected to fund increased infrastructure, the need for 
more school places, GP services, better roads, social care, refuse collection, street 
lighting etc. This is frankly appalling. 

• lack of interest in the character of Ramsbottom continues to be displayed. 

• The riverside walk has not been included 

• Clarity required on who would be maintaining the public open space after tree 
establishment. Is a commuted sum to be paid to the Local Planning Authority? Also, will 
the riverside public open space be open for use by the people of Ramsbottom? 

• The materials do not respect and enhance the setting of the historic and listed 
structures. The materials used should be stone and slate. 

• Disappointed with the revised plans as not one of our issues has been addressed. 

• No information has been submitted on how buildings A and B would be preserved or 
how the chimney would be retained.  

• Flooding has occurred in Stubbins and Ramsbottom in 2012 and 2015 with river levels 
in Stubbins peaking at 2.78 metres with flooding possible above 1.3 metres. Flooding 
has occurred in Ramsbottom in 2017, 2020 and 2021. 

• Concerned about the exit route and the velocity of any flood water on the evacuation 
route. 

• No assessment of the impact of the additional traffic on the level crossing during the 
operation of the ELR and on event days or a commuter service between Bury and 
Rawtenstall. 

• Can the local authority place a moratorium on developments of this scale in the town 
centre until the consultation for the proposed town centre plan has been completed? 

 
The supporters and objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee 
meeting. 
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - Emergency access to be clarified and highway response reported in the 
Supplementary Agenda 
Drainage Section - No objections subject to implementation in accordance with the 
submitted Drainage Assessment, Final Report, v1.3, January 2022 and associated plans 
and confirmation of detailed arrangements for future maintenance, including details of any 
management company appointed 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land.  
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No response. 
Conservation Officer - No objections, subject to a condition relating to materials. 
Waste Management - No response. 
Transport for GM - No objections, subject to a contribution of £110,000 towards 
implementation of the MOVA. 
Environment Agency - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to 
finished floor levels. 
Designforsecurity - No response. 
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and 
surface water drainage.  
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to bats, 
otters, nesting birds, invasive species and method statement and informatives relating to 
kingfishers. 
GM Archaeological Advisory Service - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 

Page 29



conditions relating to archaeology. 
Historic England - No comments. 
GM Fire Service - No objections, subject to the provision of an emergency access. 
 
Pre-start Conditions -  Awaiting confirmation the agent agrees to the pre-commencement 
conditions. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EC1/1 Land for Business (B1) (B2) (B8) 
EC2/1 Employment Generating Areas 
EC3/1 Measures to Improve Industrial Areas 
EC6/1 New Business, Industrial and Commercial 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H4/1 Affordable Housing 
H4/2 Special Needs Housing 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN1/5 Crime Prevention 
EN1/7 Throughroutes and Gateways 
EN1/8 Shop Fronts 
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas 
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control 
EN2/3 Listed Buildings 
EN3/1 Impact of Development on Archaelogical Sites 
EN3/2 Development Affecting Archaeological Sites 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN6/4 Wildlife Links and Corridors 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8 Woodland and Trees 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
OL5/2 Development in River Valleys 
RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
RT3/2 Additional Provision for Recreation in the Countryside 
RT4/6 East Lancashire Railway 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT2/5 Public Car Parks 
HT4 New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
HT6/1 Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
TC2/2 Mixed Use Development 
TC2/3 Vacant and Cleared Sites 
Area 
RM5 

Railway Street/Bridge Street/Peel Brow 

SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD2 DC Policy Guidance Note 2: Wildlife Links & Corridors 
SPD3 DC Policy Guidance Note 3: Planning Out Crime 
SPD5 DC Policy Guidance Note 5: Affordable Housing 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 

Page 30



SPD14 Employment Land and Premises 
SPD16 Design and Layout of New Development in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
NPPG National Planning Policy Guide 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle (Employment) - Part of the application site is specifically allocated for 
employment use under Policy EC1/1 of the adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 
and the majority is designated as an Employment Generating Area under UDP Policy 
EC2/1. This allocation and designation was largely reflective of the fact that the former 
Holcombe Mill site was fully operational and an established employment use at that time. 
 
However, since the closure of the mill in December 2008, the site has remained vacant and 
has undergone a programme of demolition that has subsequently presented a significant 
development opportunity on the edge of Ramsbottom town centre. 
 
Policy EC1/1 states that the land is allocated for business (B1), general industrial (B2) and 
warehousing uses (B8). Development for other business and industrial uses will only be 
permitted in exceptional circumstances and in accordance with other Policies and proposals 
of the plan.  
 
Policy EC2/1 states that the Council will only allow development for the uses specified. In 
the case of the Ramsbottom EGA (EC2/1/1), the acceptable uses are identified as being 
business (B1), general industrial (B2), warehousing (B8) and leisure and tourism uses. 
Other uses will only be allowed where they constitute limited development or where they 
would not substantially detract from the area's value as an EGA. 
 
Paragraph 120 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions need to reflect 
changes in the demand for land. They should be informed by regular reviews of both the 
land allocated for development in plans, and of land availability. Where the local planning 
authority considers there to be no reasonable prospect of an application coming forward for 
the use allocated in a plan: 
a) they should, as part of plan updates, reallocate the land for a more deliverable use that 
can help to address identified needs (or, if appropriate, deallocate a site which is 
undeveloped); and 
b) in the interim, prior to updating the plan, applications for alternative uses on the land 
should be supported, where the proposed use would contribute to meeting an unmet need 
for development in the area. 
 
Paragraph 121 of the NPPF states that local planning authorities should also take a positive 
approach to applications for alternative uses of land which is currently developed but not 
allocated for a specific purpose in plans, where this would help to meet identified 
development needs. In particular, they should support proposals to: 
a) use retail and employment land for homes in areas of high housing demand, provided 
this would not undermine key economic sectors or sites or the vitality and viability of town 
centres, and would be compatible with other policies in this Framework; and 
b) make more effective use of sites that provide community services such as schools and 
hospitals, provided this maintains or improves the quality of service provision and access to 
open space. 
 

Page 31



Through UDP Policies EC1/1 and EC2/1, the application site is effectively considered 
suitable for business, industrial, warehousing and leisure and tourism uses. The proposed 
development differs from the previous application in that it is solely for residential use and 
there is no commercial development. Residential is not one of the uses considered suitable 
for the site in principle under either UDP Policies EC1/1 or EC2/1. 
 
However, Policy EC1/1 states that other uses will only be permitted in exceptional 
circumstances and, in this respect, it is considered appropriate to consider the 
circumstances of the site and, in particular, that it has remained vacant and unused since 
2008 in a prominent location close to the heart of Ramsbottom town centre. 
 
Similarly, UDP Policy EC2/1 states that alternative uses will only be permitted where they 
would constitute limited development or where they would not substantially detract from the 
area's value as an EGA. Whilst the loss of a significant part of the EGA to residential cannot 
be considered to constitute limited development, it is necessary to consider whether the 
proposal would substantially detract from the area's value for generating employment. In 
this respect, it is relevant to consider the fact that the site has not generated any 
employment or economic output for 14 years. 
 
As stated above, paragraph 120 of the NPPF specifies that where the local planning 
authority considers there to be no reasonable prospect of an application coming forward for 
the use allocated in a plan, applications for alternative uses on the land should be 
supported, where the proposed use would contribute to meeting an unmet need for 
development in the area. The applicant has submitted a report on the Employment Potential 
and Economic Viability of the site and this has concluded that the site was unlikely to ever 
be reoccupied for employment purposes due to the following site constraints: 

• Difficult access for HGV's from the M66 motorway 

• Access via residential roads 

• Proximity to the River Irwell 

• Lack of viability. 
 
It is accepted that this is a reasonable conclusion to draw from the assessment of the site 
and that there is no reasonable prospect of the site being reused for employment purposes. 
 
In light of the above, it is considered that there are exceptional circumstances to justify 
residential development on the land allocated under UDP Policy EC1/1 and that, in the 
context of UDP Policy EC2/1, the loss of the site to residential would not substantially 
detract from the area's value as an EGA. 
 
As such, the loss of the employment use of the site to residential is considered to be 
acceptable in principle. 
   
Principle (Housing) - The National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a 
material planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to 
boost the supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. 
There is a particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a 
rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land.  
 
Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply 
position, which is made up with sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that 
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a 
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of 
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as 
many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g. 
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring 
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing 
land. In addition to this, past under delivery of housing has resulted in Bury having a 'low' 
housing delivery test result. This needs to be treated as a material factor when determining 
applications for residential developments.  

Page 32



 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The site is located within the urban area and there are a mix of uses, including residential 
and commercial in the locality. As such, the proposed development would not conflict with 
the surrounding land uses and would be in a sustainable location with regard to services 
and public transport. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with 
Policy H1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Heritage/impact upon the conservation area - As set out above, part of the application 
site falls within the Ramsbottom Conservation Area (a Designated Heritage Asset). 
 
Sections 66 and 72 of the Town & Country Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas 
Act) 1990 imposes a statutory duty upon the Local Planning Authority (LPA) to recognise, 
positively manage and ensure the preservation or enhancement of Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas. 
 
Chapter 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government's 
planning policy position in relation to development involving heritage matters. Paras 194 to 
208 set out how the significance of Conservation Areas must be considered in relation to 
development proposals including, but not limited to, the judgement of harm, significance, 
loss to heritage assets (Designated ones and non-designated ones). 
 
UDP Policies EN2/1 and EN2/2 seek to protect the character of conservation areas and to 
ensure that proposals preserve or enhance the character of such sensitive buildings and 
areas. In applying the tests of the policy to proposals, nature of the development, materials, 
relationships between visual qualities and the surrounding areas et al form part of the 
assessment process to ensure a high, conservation approach is adopted that is designed to 
preserve or enhance. 
 
The site is partly located within the chimney is located within the Ramsbottom Conservation 
area and includes a chimney, office building and engineering building. The chimney would 
once have been one of many within the town, but the others have since been demolished. 
The chimney is one of two left in the immediate area and it has been identified in the 
Ramsbottom Conservation Area Appraisal as a ‘significant building that makes a positive 
contribution to the character of the Conservation Area.’  
 
The plans originally submitted with this application did not address the concerns raised 
during the previously withdrawn application (65217). The concerns from the previous 
application related to the impact on the character, appearance and setting of the 
Ramsbottom Conservation Area by the design, size, mass, scale, palette and materials of 
the proposed house types. The proposed house types appeared to be off the peg designs, 
which have been repeated at other sites.  
 
Revised plans have been submitted with regard to the layout, design, mass, scale and 
materials for the proposed house types. The proposed dwellings would be constructed from 
natural stone, which would be appropriate to the conservation area. The proposed house 
types within and along the boundary with the Conservation Area would be smaller terraced 
plots. The proposed house types are significantly different from the originally submitted 
house types and would provide reconstituted stone built houses with a simple design that 
would respect the character of the historic built form of the setting of the Conservation Area. 
 
The majority of the application site is located outside of the Conservation Area and the key 
consideration is the appearance of the materials in relation to the existing buildings on site. 
Given that the majority of the site is outside of the Conservation Area, the viability 
constraints and the use of the material across the whole site, the use of reconstituted stone 

Page 33



is considered to be acceptable, subject to conditional control. As such, the proposed 
development would preserve the character of the Conservation Area. 
 
The site as it currently exists represents a negative feature on and within the setting of the 
Conservation Area and the proposed development would remove this negative feature. As 
such, the proposed development would cause no harm to, or loss of significance to the 
Conservation Area and would enhance the character of it and its setting. The Conservation 
Officer has no objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to the external 
materials, including stone, roof covering and door design.  
 
Paragraph 203 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) says the effect of an 
application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into 
account in determining the application. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly 
affect non-designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard 
to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset. 
 
The site has largely lost its industrial legibility and understanding. The proposed retention 
and conversion to residential use of buildings A and B, commonly accepted as being A – the 
mills’ administrative offices and B – an engineering workshop is welcomed. The proposed 
changes to the external appearance of building A are minimal and would retain its important 
architectural features, which together with its evidential value as a factory office would retain 
the remaining legibility of the site of its former industrial use. Building B is less significant 
and has been much altered and as such the proposed alterations in order to adapt the 
building to a residential use are also acceptable. Both buildings A and B have been weighed 
in the balance of paragraph 203 of the NPPF. It must be stressed the proposed adaptations 
are only acceptable with the proviso that in building A no window or door openings are 
moved, removed, blocked up or altered in any way and no architectural 
features such as lintels, string courses, hoods and ashlar are removed or altered. The 
Conservation Officer has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to the 
details of new window and door openings for buildings A and B. 
 
Conclusion - The revised proposed layout, house types, design and materials of the 
development for the reasons given would be acceptable with regard to views in and out of 
the conservation area. The proposal would comply with inter alia paragraph 206 of the 
NPPF: 
“Local planning authorities should look for opportunities for new development within 
Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites, and within the setting of heritage assets, to 
enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those elements of the 
setting that make a positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal its significance) 
should be treated favourably”.  
 
Together with the conversion of buildings A and B and the demolition of Building C the 
proposal would enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area and its 
setting as required by section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990 and accord with the aims of Policy 4 of the Conservation Area Appraisal and 
Management Plan. The proposal would comply with paragraphs 197, 199, 200, 201, 202, 
203, 206, 207 of the NPPF and Policies EN2/1 and EN2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan. 
 
Design and layout - The proposed development would provide a mix of apartments, 
terraced, semi-detached and detached dwellings. The proposed dwellings would be 
predominantly two storeys in height and 8 of the proposed dwellings would be two storeys 
with living accommodation in the roofspace. The proposed apartment blocks would be four 
storeys in height. There is a mix of two storey, two storeys with converted roofspace and the 
storey properties in the locality and as such, the proposed development would not be a 
prominent feature in terms of height.  
 
There would be two rows of terraced properties across the frontage to Bridge Street, which 
would be located either side of the converted buildings. As such, the proposed development 

Page 34



would respect the character of the conservation area by providing a high density 
development, which is one of it characteristics. 
 
The use of headers, cills, pike details, porches and canopies would add visual interest to the 
elevations. As such, the proposed development would not be a prominent feature in the 
locality. 
 
All of the proposed dwellings would have a side or rear garden, which would provide a 
suitable level of amenity space. There would be space within the gardens for bin storage 
and the proposed boundary treatments of timber fencing, railings and brick walls would be 
acceptable. As such, the proposed development would preserve the character of the 
conservation area and would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene. Therefore, the 
proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1, H2/2, EN2/1 and 
EN2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between 
residential properties and as such, would be relevant to this case. The aspect standards 
states that there should be a minimum of 20 metres between directly facing habitable 
windows and 13 metres between a habitable room window and a two storey blank wall.  
 
All of the relationships between the proposed dwellings within the site would comply with the 
aspect standards. The proposed dwellings would be set at least 10 metres from the 
boundary of the site and would not impact upon the neighbouring properties. Therefore, the 
proposed would not have an adverse impact upon residential amenity and would be in 
accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Flood risk/drainage - The application site is a former mill site which has partially been 
cleared and is largely situated within flood zone 3. 
 
There is historical evidence that the site has flooded, namely in the recent Storm Eva and 
Storm Clara flood events experienced in 2015 and 2020. 
 
A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) was submitted with the application and further information 
has been provided over the course of the application. The proposed development would 
involve the creation of a development platform for the proposed dwellings to ensure that the 
finished floor levels for the dwellings would be set above the flood levels. The Environment 
Agency have considered the FRA, which has assessed the predominant fluvial flood risk to 
the site and proposed measures to mitigate the risks. The FRA identifies that there is some 
risk associated with access/egress from the site during a design event or more extreme 
events. The applicant has proposed management of these risks via a Flood Plan. 
 
The Environment Agency has no objections to the proposed development, subject to the 
inclusion of conditions relating to finished floor levels. 
 
The Emergency Planning team have been consulted on the Flood Plan and their comments 
are awaited. These will be reported in the Supplementary Report. 
 
The issue of surface water drainage has been considered and further information submitted 
during the course of the application. The applicant has agreed to increase the size of the 
pipes within the site, which allows for the greater retention of water within the site. As a 
larger volume of water would be retained within the site, the proposed development would 
not increase the risk of flooding from surface water drainage. The Drainage Section has no 
objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to Drainage Assessment and 
United Utilities has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and 
surface water drainage.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not increase flood risk to the site or increase 
flood risk downstream. The proposed development would not impact adversely upon the 
foul and surface water drainage. Therefore, the proposed development would comply with 

Page 35



Policies EN5/1 and EN7/5 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Ecology - An Ecology report was submitted with the application and the main issues to be 
considered in relation to ecology are bats, otters, nesting birds, invasive species, protection 
of the river Irwell and contributing to the natural environment. 
 
Bats - A bat survey, including emergence and re-entry surveys was submitted with the 
application. The bat surveys identified small common pipistrelle roosts in both buildings 
proposed for conversion but no roosts were located in the building to be demolished or the 
chimney. As such, a license would be required from Natural England in addition for the 
conversion of the retained buildings. Given the low numbers of common pipistrelle utilising 
the building, GM Ecology Unit accepts that this could be mitigated and it likely that a licence 
would be issued by Natural England. GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the 
inclusion of a condition relating to bats. 
 
Otter - The ecological survey found no evidence of otters on the site and GM Ecology Unit 
have no reason to doubt the findings of the report. However, as otters are known to be 
present in the River Irwell and they have territories covering tens of kilometres, it is likely 
that otters may pass the site on occasion. As such, GM Ecology Unit have no objections, 
subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to otters.  
 
Other Protected Species - Other protected species have been discounted and GM Ecology 
Unit agree with this approach. However, Kingfisher were recorded on the River Irwell and 
whilst nesting on site is extremely unlikely, an informative relating to Kingfisher has been 
recommended by GM Ecology Unit. 
 
Nesting Bird - The site is becoming colonised by dense scrub and there is bird nesting 
habitat on site. GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition 
relating to nesting birds.  
 
Invasive Species - Japanese knotweed, Himalayan balsam and Cotoneaster spa are 
present on the site and an updated invasive species method statement was submitted 
during the course of the application. GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the 
inclusion of a condition relating to invasive species.  
 
Protection of the River Irwell - An assessment of the potential impacts on the river has now 
been provided. This has identified the likely risks and provided evidence that post 
development surface water drainage will have less impact on the river than the current 
drainage. Thereby, the proposed development would have a positive impact on the 
ecological potential of the river.  The proposed public open space/flood alleviation scheme 
along the river would also have a positive impact. GM Ecology Unit are satisfied that 
negative impacts can be avoided and have no objections, subject to the inclusion of a 
condition relating to a construction environmental management plan.  
 
Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment - Section 174 of the NPPF 2019 
states that the planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural 
and local environment.  Large parts of the site are hard standing, though colonisation by 
scrub is occurring, with losses of higher value habitat restricted to the woodland and scrub 
along the tributary watercourse and some mature trees along the river.  
 
Habitat creation is proposed along the river, which is the best location for such mitigation to 
occur, with open space along the tributary watercourse and large areas of hardstanding 
would be replaced with garden landscape. Detailed planting proposals have been provided 
and native planting would be provided along the river which is welcomed. GM Ecology Unit 
has no objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to landscaping.  
 
Conclusion - With the recommended conditions in place, the proposed development would 
not cause harm to protected species or the River Irwell. Therefore, the proposed 
development would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary 

Page 36



Development Plan.  
 
Noise - A noise and vibration impact assessment was submitted to assess the impact of 
road traffic noise, noise from the nearby sports facilities and noise associated with the 
operation of the East Lancashire Railway. 
 
The report assessed the noise generated from the nearby sports clubs and found the impact 
upon the occupiers of the proposed residential development was negligible.  
 
The report assessed the noise generated from traffic and states that there would be 
exceedances in the garden areas to plots 8 and 21, which would be resolved by a 1.8 metre 
high fence between the garden and Bridge Street. The proposed development would 
provide standard thermal double glazing which would be sufficient to meet the required 
noise levels for the occupiers of the proposed dwellings. However, if windows were open for 
ventilation, it would not comply and as such, a forced ventilation scheme would be required 
for habitable rooms - see below for specific plot numbers. 
 
The East Lancashire Railway operates between Heywood and Rawtenstall, which includes 
a stop at Ramsbottom. The railway line and station are located to the west of the site. The 
noise report states that the installation of 2.4 metre tall barriers would reduce the noise 
levels to an acceptable level. In addition, a forced ventilation scheme would be required for 
habitable rooms. 
 
Across the site, the following would be required to reduce the impact from noise to an 
acceptable level: 

• Barriers: 

• 1.8m barrier is required around the garden area attached to plots 8 and 21; 

• 2.4m barriers are required on the western boundaries of plots 2 to 7 and 43 to 51; 

• 2.4m barriers are required on the southern boundaries of plots 7 and 51. 

• Alternate/forced ventilation: 

• Plots 1 to 4 

• Plots 8 to 28 

• Plots 30, 31 and 34; 

• Buildings A and B; and 

• All habitable rooms overlooking the railway - Plots 2-7 and 43-67. 
 
The proposed boundary treatment plan confirms that all the required barriers would be 
provided and these would be timber acoustic fencing, which would be acceptable.  
 
In conclusion, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon 
the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed dwellings, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy EN7/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Highways issues - A Transport Assessment was submitted with the application, which has 
been assessed by Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM). The junction of Bury New 
Road and Manchester Road was modelled and the proposed development would increase 
traffic levels, which would exceed the capacity of the junction. As such, a contribution of 
£110,000 is required for the implementation of MOVA at the junction, which would increase 
capacity and efficiency of the junction. Following the analysis of the Viability Assessment, 
the applicant has agreed to pay this contribution and as such, the proposed development 
would be acceptable.  
 
The proposed development would be accessed from the existing access road, which runs 
along the western boundary. This access road was previously in use by the paper mill and 
is also used by the football club and cricket club. Appropriate levels of visibility would be 
provided. There are two existing accesses onto Bridge Street. One would be closed and the 
second would be narrowed and only used as the emergency access. The closure and 
reduction in the use of these two accesses is welcomed.  

Page 37



 
Further comments from the Traffic Section will be reported in the Supplementary Report. 
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards for the proposed development 
are: 

• 1 space per 1 bed dwelling; 

• 1.5 spaces per 2 bed dwelling; 

• 2 spaces per 3 bed dwelling; 

• 3 spaces per 4 bed dwelling. 
This equates to 159 spaces.  
 
The proposed development would provide 138 spaces and 26 garages. The proposed 
development is located within walking distance of the town centre and as such, is located in 
a sustainable location. As such, the level of parking provided would be acceptable. 
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Planning obligations/viability - A viability assessment (VA) was submitted with the 
application and has been independently assessed. The report identifies that there are a 
number of abnormal costs associated with developing this brownfield site, including 
remediation, works to the chimney, piled foundations, gas membranes, acoustic fencing, 
works to the culvert and regrading the land.  
 
The applicant's VA and the independent assessment concluded that the redevelopment of 
the site would not be viable if the full 25% (18 units) policy compliant level of affordable 
housing were required in addition to the highways contribution. Following negotiations with 
the developer, the proposed development would provide: 

• Affordable housing - 10 affordable units would be provided, to be sold at a 25% discount 
on open market value. 

• Recreation provision - A scheme for the ongoing management of the on-site recreation 
provision. 

• Highways contribution - £110,000 towards the installation of MOVA 
 
The NPPF requirement to deliver 25% of the affordable homes as First Homes would be 
applicable to this development, however due to the advanced stage of negotiations when 
the requirement came into force coupled with the confirmed viability issues, this requirement 
has not been applied in this case. The level of affordable housing is considered to be the 
maximum achievable while maintaining a viable development and as such, the proposed 
development would be in accordance with Policy H4/1 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan.  
 
Response to objectors 

• The site is located within flood zone 3 and the issues relating to flood risk have been 
addressed in the main report. The Environment Agency, Drainage Section and UNited 
Utilities have no objections to the proposed development, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions.  

• The issues relating to highway safety have been addressed in the main report. 

• The issues relating to design, heritage and impact upon the Conservation Area have 
been addressed in the report above. 

• The applicant submitted a viability report, which has been independently assessed and 
10 affordable units will be provided. There is no policy requirement to provide funding for 
school or doctors. The proposed development would provide amenity space on site. 

• The issues relating to ecology, invasive species and protected species have been 
addressed in the report above. 

• The Local Planning Authority must determine all applications submitted to it and cannot 
refuse to determine an application, even during a lockdown. 

• The Local Planning Authority must determine an application submitted in accordance 
with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 

Page 38



development plan includes the Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. The town 
centre masterplan does not hold any weight with regard to the decision making process 
and is not a material consideration. 

 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 101, RAMS-TOPO-001, 
RAMS-TOPO-002, 102 J, 103 F, 105 A, 105, 105-1, 106, 501, 501-1, 502, 502-1 
A, P.1202.19.11, AP-P-01-1, AP-P-02, ENG-02, CF-P-01-1, FM-P-01-2, 
WN-P-01-2, AR-P-02, HA-P-01-1, HT-P-01-2, CL+-P-01, SG-P-01-1, TG-P-01-1, 
STD-WD-030, F02, F02-1, F04-1, F05 E, F05-1 E, F06 B, F09, FO12, FO14 and 
the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations, 
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development 
is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the 
construction of the development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity. 

 

4. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

Page 39



 

5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

6. The conversion of buildings B1 and B2 is likely to cause harm to common 
pipistrelle bats as identified in the Bat Nocturnal Surveys Report, by Ascerta ref. 
P.1202.19.and shall not in any circumstances commence unless or until the 
following has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: 

• A license issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 55, of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 authorising the 
specified activity/development go ahead: or 

• A statement in writing from the relevant licensing body to the effect that it does 
not consider that the specified development will require a license 

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

7. No earthworks shall commence unless or until a resurvey for otter has been 
carried out and a reasonable avoidance measures method statement for otters 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details only. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide full details and in order to ensure that no 
harm is caused to a Protected Species pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of 
the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – Features of Ecological Value of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan and Section 11 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 

8. No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in 
any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist 
has been carried out immediately prior to clearance. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 - 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

9. Prior to any earthworks the invasive species the Invasive Species method 
statement by Ascerta reference P.1202 detailing eradication and/or control and/or 
avoidance measures for Himalayan balsam, Japanese knotweed and Cotoneaster 
spp should be reviewed, updated and submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved method statement shall be adhered to and 
implemented. 
Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of 
Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan Balsam in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 - 
Landscape and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - 
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

10. No development, site clearance, earth moving shall take place or material or 
Page 40



machinery brought on site until a method statement to protect the River Irwell from 
accidental spillages, dust and debris has been submitte to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. All measure will be implemented and maintained 
for the duration of the construction period in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the protection measures and 
in order to ensure that no harm is caused to the River Irwell pursuant to policies 
EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – Features of 
Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 11 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

11. The landscaping scheme hereby approved shall be implemented to the written 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority not later than 12 months from the date 
the building(s) is first occupied.  Any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming 
severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years of planting shall 
be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size and species to those originally 
required to be planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policy EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan.. 

 

12. Prior to the commencement of demolition or development groundworks the 
applicant or their agents or successors in title shall secure the implementation of a 
programme of archaeological works. The works are to be undertaken in 
accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) prepared by the 
appointed archaeological contractor and submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The WSI shall cover the following: 
1. A phased programme and methodology of archaeological fieldwork to include: 

i. archaeological building survey (HE Level 1) 
ii. targeted archaeological evaluation trenching 
iii. informed by ii) above, targeted open area excavation and recording 

(subject to a separate WSI) 
2. A programme for post fieldwork assessment to include production of a final 

report on the significance of the below-ground archaeological interest. 
3. Deposition of the final report with the Greater Manchester Historic Environment 

Record. 
4. Dissemination of the results of the archaeological investigations 

commensurate with their significance. 
5. Provision for archive deposition of the report and records of the site 

investigation. 
6. Nomination of a competent person or persons 
 
Reason. Information not sumitted at application stage. To make a record of 
buildings and features of archaeological interest pursuant to policies EN3/1 – 
Impact of Development on Archaeological Sites, EN3/2 – Development Affecting 
Archaeological Sites and EN3/3 – Ancient Monuments of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 

13. The surface water drainage proposals shall be implemented in accordance with 
the submitted Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Assessment, Final Report, 
v1.3, January 2022. The approved scheme only shall be implemented prior to first 
occupation and thereafter maintained. 
Reason. To promote sustainable development and reduce flood risk pursuant to 
Unitary Development Plan Policies EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , 
EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - 
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change of the 
NPPF. 

 

14. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 
Reason. To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies EN5/1- New Development 

Page 41



and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - Waste Water Management 
and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 
change of the NPPF. 

 

15. No development shall commence unless or until, details of the proposed ground 
and floor levels have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall show compliance with the requirements of the approved FRA 
(ref: Weetwood Final Report v1.2 dated August 2020), be fully implemented and 
subsequently maintained, in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing 
arrangements, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. The scheme does not contain full details of the floor levels and to ensure 
that there are no detrimental impacts to flood storage or flood flow route and to 
reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future users pursuant 
to Policy EN5/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning 
Policy Framework.  

 

16. The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated 
and made available for use prior to the dwellings hereby approved being brought 
into use. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

16. The respective plots shall not be occupied unless or until the measures specified 
in the Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment have been implemented and made 
available for use. 
Reason. To protect the residential amenity of the future occupiers of the dwellings 
hereby approved pursuant to Policy EN7/2 - Noise Pollution of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.  

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322

Page 42



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 67400

Hollins House Farm
247 Hollins Lane



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Farm

Community Centre

260

House 245

Hollins

18

261 PH

12

10

H
ow

ard H
ill

P
at

h 
(u

m
)

99.4m

1

3

24

5

6

7

Viewpoints

Page 43



67400 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 

Page 44



67400 

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 

Page 45



67400 

Photo 5 

 

 

Photo 6 

 

Page 46



67400 

Photo 7 

 

 

Page 47



P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



Page 52



 
 
  
 
Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Item   02 

 
Applicant: Mr Nield 
 
Location: Hollins House Farm, 247 Hollins Lane, Bury, BL9 8AS 

 
Proposal: Conversion of existing single storey barn to form 1 no. dwelling and replacement of 

two storey barn with an attached two storey 1 no. dwelling 
 
Application Ref:   67400/Full Target Date:  18/11/2021 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The site is located in Hollins Village and contains a brick built barn building and a residential 
dwelling which are located around a hardstanding and accessed via Hollins Lane.    
 
There is a pub and associated car park to the west and there are residential properties to 
the south west on Prospect Place. There is a golf course to the south and a terrace of 
dwellings to the east fronting Hollins Lane.  Opposite the site to the north there is a dwelling 
and community centre to the north with open land beyond.  
 
The barn building, which is the subject of this planning application was formally a 'T' shape 
building, the linear length of which is located along the roadside of Hollins Lane and is 
single storey in height.  There was formally a 'leg' projection which extended from the rear 
elevation of the linear building and which was 2 storey in height, part of which had collapsed 
at the southern end.  
 
Permission was granted by Planning Control Committee in 2020 (planning reference 65632) 
for the conversion of the barns to form 2 no. dwellings which included a 2 storey extension 
to the southern end of the barn which was to be sited on the footprint of the part of the build 
which had collapsed.    
 
One dwelling was to be formed in the linear barn fronting Hollins Lane and the other 
dwelling in the projection leg of the barn to the south.  (For the purposes of the report, the 
proposed dwelling in yellow on the plans will be referred to as barn 1 and the proposed 
dwelling in blue referred to as barn 2 - annotated in the 'Site Block Plan' 17.492.22).   
Parking would be provided off the existing courtyard for the two proposed dwellings and the 
existing dwelling. The access would be moved to the unadopted access land to the east of 
the site. This would be widened to 4.5 metres for the first 5 metres and thereon a new 'right 
turn' into the site.  It is also proposed to provide a footpath on the eastern side of the 
unadopted access lane.   
 
Since the grant of this planning consent, the two storey projection leg element of the barn 
has been demolished and this was by way of a Section 80 Demolition Notice (approved May 
2021).   
 
This application now seeks to rebuild the former 2 storey barn together with all other works 
previously approved in application reference 65632.   
 
Since the submission of this application, plans have been revised and for the avoidance of 
doubt, this proposed scheme would deliver the exact same development which was 
previously approved under ref 65632, but would in fact be bettered by the reduction in 
footprint on the south eastern part of the rear elevation of barn 2 by 1.45m.   
 

Page 53



Minor changes to the elevations are also proposed.  
 
For clarity, the proposed development comprises -  
 

• Conversion of the single storey barn to form 1 no. dwelling (same as previously 
approved under ref 65632), with some elevational alterations. 

• Replacement of the demolished 2 storey barn to form 1 no. 2 storey dwelling on the 
same footprint as previously approved under ref 65632.  

• Works to form the access to the site 

• Landscaping  
 
To be clear, the proposed dwelling in yellow on the plans will be referred to as barn 1 and 
the proposed dwelling in blue on the plans will be referred to as barn 2. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
47451 - Two storey front extension at Hollins House Farm, Hollins Lane, Bury. Approved 
with conditions - 13 February 2007 
 
55816 - Conversion of derelict buildings into 4 no. dwellings and 3 no. single storey 
extensions and 1 no. two storey extension at Hollins House, Hollins Lane, Bury. Withdrawn - 
28 October 2013. 
 
65632 - Conversion of 2 no. barns to 2 no. dwellings at Hollins House Farm, Hollins Lane, 
Bury. Approved with conditions - 6 October 2020. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 28 September 2021 and a 
press notice was published in the Bury Times on 7 October 2021. Site notices were posted 
on 5 October 2021. 
 
2 letters of objection have been received which have raised the following issues: 

• Objecting to the development of the Hollins House Farm as it seriously impacts me and 
my families privacy. As a muslim my wife wears a headscarf, she is only able to take 
this off in the comfort of her own home. This new development will impact our privacy as 
well as taking away the freedom from my wife in being able to take off her headscarf. 
This is due to the height and position of the proposed new development.  

• Whilst the barn has been demolished, our privacy has been compromised as the 
builders were looking directly into the back of our house which covers the kitchen, living 
room and bedrooms, making it very stressful for the family. If the proposed development 
takes place we will have no privacy left within our own home, due to the builders and the 
new residents of the proposed development. 

• Therefore I strongly object to this development. 

• Once again I am objecting to the development of Hollins House Farm. This development 
seriously encroaches on me and my families privacy and has made us feel incredibly 
uncomfortable. In addition to this , when plans were submitted originally , it was for the 
renovation of both of the existing barns. This is no longer the case , although the barn at 
the front of Hollins Lane will remain , the barn closest to our property and the one that 
will impact us more has been mostly demolished , with work to take down the building 
continuing and heavy machinery already on site to finish the job. During the demolition 
work contractors and family members have been seen to look into our property , which 
is easy due to the serious height difference and the use of cherry pickers. Our bathroom 
and my children's bedrooms are located here 

• We have had issues contacting the planning development department to raise our 
concerns, a formal complaint has been made and a request for an investigation also 
made. 

 
Revised plans received to show the extent of the proposed replacement dwelling reduced to 
align with previously approved scheme (ref 65632) and changes to the elevations. 
Description amended to read - Conversion of existing single storey barn to form 1 no. 

Page 54



dwelling and the replacement of the two storey barn with an attached two storey 1 no. 
dwelling.   
 
Amended letters sent to occupiers of Nos 16, 18 Prospect Place and Hollins Bush Public 
House (those nearest to the  proposed changes) on 10 May 2022. 
 
Three objections received and issues raised summarised as follows -  

• Yet these new plans fail to acknowledge the most basic respect for their neighbours and 
haven't recognised the socio-economic impacts that this planned development would 
have if given the green light; 

• Lack of privacy - Once again, these revised plans fail to consider our privacy. The 
proposed development, by reason of its size and siting, represents an un-neighbourly 
form of development that would have an adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties by reason of an overbearing effect.  There would be overlooking of our 
windows and back garden.  The height difference between land levels would present an 
overbearing and intrusive element.  Overlooking from windows on elevations B and C. 

• Overshadowing and lack of light - Whilst part of the building would be 'tilted' towards the 
existing house, there would still be a 2/3 storey building plonked at the end of the 
garden.  Already get a limited amount of sun which would be reduced further.   

• Whilst the plans have been revised to reduce the footprint of the building to the originally 
approved position, the build would still encroach our fenceline. 

• Further impact on wildlife, habitats and a continued negative impact on trees and 
conservation - The development has already taken its toll on wildlife, there were 
established trees that have been cut down and there would be a detrimental effect on 
tree canopy that is still standing. Since demolition, nests have been disturbed and there 
has been a litter of dead or injured birds, and increase in bird droppings - when does 
this go to being an inconvenience to an environmental health issue?  

• Acknowledge the revised plans include bird boxes but this is not sufficient. Certain 
member of the Hollins Village conservation group have also commented on the impact 
that this development would have on the environment. 

• Freedom to openly practice religious beliefs not considered - Neighbours of ours have 
certain religious practices which are part of their everyday life which would be 
compromised if their property was overlooked. If these proposals were approved, no 
one should feel that they cannot exercise their religion in their own home without being 
looked down on by residents of the dwelling. 

• Barn demolished without informing the Council.  The original plan was to renovate the 
barn - but the intention was obviously to build and extend the barn.  

• Appreciate careful consideration of these objections.  Although the plans may have 
been revised, they do not do enough. We have said if the applicant wants to build on the 
existing footprint of the original barn, we had no issues.  

• Understand this would be a delegated decision but more than happy for planning 
officers to come and hear the concerns of neighbours as well as see the impacts this 
development would have first hand.  

• Overlooking/loss of privacy - elevation D shows windows & doors directly facing our 
home. Added to the raised elevation this would allow occupants of the development to 
see directly into our living, bedroom areas and garden resulting in overbearing, 
unacceptable loss of privacy  

• Noise & disturbance resulting from use - increased traffic & noise from occupants will 
significantly alter the much valued peaceful nature of the location 

• Visual amenity - loss of current view will cause adverse impact on residential amenities. 
 
Objection received from Councillor Boroda 

• This application would threaten the neighbour's right to privacy and their right to light, 
and with a clear height difference it would affect their privacy and light.  

 
Letter received from the local MP's Office attached to which is an objection from a local 
resident (already received by the Planning Authority, issues summarised above), and who 
shares the concerns expressed by the objector and trusts that a full and fair consideration 

Page 55



will be given to each of the objections, concerns and points made.  
 
Those who have made representations have been informed of the Planning Control 
Committee meeting.  
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objection subject to condition 
United Utilities - No objection subject to condition 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objection subject to conditions 
Public Rights of Way Officer - No comments 
Conservation Officer - No objection 
Waste Management - No comments received 
GM Fire Service - No comments 
GM Ecology Unit - No objection subject to conditions 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN2 Conservation and Listed Buildings 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
OL1/4 Conversion and Re-use of Buildings in the Green Belt 
RT3/4 Recreational Routes 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - The principle of a residential development on the site by way of conversion of 
existing barns to form 2 no dwellings was established by grant of planning consent ref 
65632. 
 
The resulting proposed scheme would essentially deliver the same scheme as that 
previously approved - to provide for 2 no dwellings with associated works -  albeit part of 
the development would now be for a replacement building.   
The principle of development for 2 no dwellings has been established and this application 
would replicate the previously approved scheme.  There have been no changes to planning 
policy since the scheme was originally approved and the principle of the proposed 
development is considered acceptable.       
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 

Page 56



proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The site is located within the urban area and there are residential dwellings to the east and 
west of the site. As such, the proposed development would not conflict with the surrounding 
land uses. Appropriate infrastructure would be available. As such, the proposed 
development would be acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Layout   
The proposed layout would be the same as the previously approved scheme (ref 65632). 
 
The footprint of the built development would be the same as previously approved (with a 
reduced length of 1.45m to the proposed garage of barn 2).  
 
The level of private amenity space for the proposed dwellings and the existing dwelling 
would be acceptable and there would be space within the rear or side garden for bin storage 
which would be collected from a designated bin collection area close to the front of the site 
access.  
 
The access off Hollins Lane would be taken from the unadopted lane and widened to 
improve the entrance and visibility, and would lead directly into the site via gates which 
would be re-positioned within the driveway.  The pedestrian footway would be refurbished 
at the site entrance. 
 
Within the site, there would be parking spaces for the 2 dwellings and areas around the site 
and parts of the boundaries would be landscaped.  Bat/bird boxes would also be provided. 
 
Along the western boundary there would be timber boarded fencing, which would be 
acceptable and match the existing and would provide a level of privacy to and from the site 
on the western side.  As such, the proposed boundary treatments would be acceptable.  
 
The proposed development would replicate the layout previously approved which was 
considered acceptable and similarly acceptable for this planning application. 
 
As such, the  proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN1/1, EN1/2, 
H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Design and appearance  
In terms of barn 1, this build fronts Hollins Lane and apart from the insertion of 4 rooflights, 
this elevation would retain existing openings and the original character and appearance of 
the barn from public viewpoints and as such considered acceptable.  The rear elevation of 
barn 1 would be as previously approved, which proposed additional openings but are 
considered to be appropriate in size and position within the fenestrations.    
In essence, the fabric of barn 1 would be retained and alterations relatively minimal to 
enable its conversion for habitable living purposes.  
 
Barn 2, the replacement build would be built in brick and relate to barn 1 in terms of its 
fabric.  Comparative to the previously approved scheme, the form, scale, massing and 
height would be replicated and similarly, the design would err towards a more contemporary 
design approach in terms of its fenestrations and window openings.  That said, the more 
modern openings and features would face the internal courtyard and would not visible from 
outside the site.  To the west, there would be some larger openings but the size and 
position would not be dissimilar to size of openings which are found on barn buildings.  
Other windows would be randomly placed and characteristic of barn types.  
 
Whilst adding some modern and contemporary elements and openings, these features 
would be sensitively positioned within the fenestrations of both barn 1 and 2 and in relation 

Page 57



to the site itself and complement the character of the existing barn and character of the site 
itself.  The proposed development would reflect the design principles of the previously 
approved scheme and the approach to the form, scale and design of barn 2 would 
essentially replicate the approach approved for the conversion scheme. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development is considered to be acceptable and would be in 
accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Impact upon residential amenity  
SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between residential properties and as such, 
would be relevant in this case. 
 
There would be a distance of 23m between barn 1 and the front elevation of No 260 Hollins 
lane and aspect standards would be comfortably satisfied. 
 
To the existing house, Hollins House Farm, there would be a distance of 15m from the 2 
storey elevation of barn.  There would be no direct interface between habitable room 
windows  and most views from the front of Hollins House would overlook the existing 
courtyard and parking.  As such, aspect standards would be satisfied. 
 
To the west of barn 1 and part of the elevation of barn 2 is the public house.  There are 
windows on the 1st floor of the side and rear of the pub, which could be habitable room 
windows.  Given the angle of the barn buildings, there would be no direct interface between 
the elevations and habitable room windows.  In addition, the proposed barn 2 would be 
sited on the footprint of the original barn and as such the relationship between the site and 
the public house would be no worse than had previously existed. The remaining part of barn 
2 would face the car park.  
 
To the south west of the site is No 18 Prospect Place.  The original footprint of barn 2 
extended more or less level to the corner edge of the garden of No 18.  This application 
seeks to replicate the footprint of the original barn and replicate the footprint of the 
previously approved application reference 65632. 
 
The application site is approximately 1m higher than No 18 Prospect Place and as such, 
16m between a blank gable wall and habitable room windows would be required.  There 
would be a distance of 19m between the proposed barn 2 and the rear corner elevation of 
No 18.  The proposed barn 2 would not extend any further along the boundary with No 18 
than previously existed or was previously approved and there would be no direct interface 
from elevations or windows between the proposed barn and the rear elevation of No 18.   
 
Given the orientation of the footprint of barn 2, the view from the windows on the south 
elevation would face the length of the existing garden in the site and as such there would be 
no overlooking or impacts on privacy to properties to the west on Prospect Place.  
 
The previously approved scheme was assessed and considered acceptable and policy 
compliant and this application would be no different, and therefore no sustainable reason to 
not support the application.  
 
Given the above, it is considered the proposed development would not have a significant or 
adverse impact upon the amenity of neighbouring properties and as such considered 
acceptable and compliant with Policies H2/1, H2/2, EN1/2 and SPD6.   
 
Heritage 
The barns are Non-Designated Heritage Assets. Barn 2 has already been demolished.  As 
such there is no objection on heritage grounds to its proposed replacement and for the 
conversion of the existing barn. It is considered the proposal would not cause harm to the 
significance of the barn by way of any adverse impact on its setting as its principal setting 
are views from Hollins Lane and there would be minimal change to the Hollins Lane 
elevation.   

Page 58



As such, there is no objection to the proposed development. 
 
Ecology 
A bat survey was submitted as part of the application. The two buildings on site were 
surveyed and there was no evidence to suggest that bats were utilising the buildings. 
Therefore, the risk to bats would be low.  
 
The proposed ground floor/site plan includes details of landscaping and the proposed 
elevation plans show that bird boxes would be located in the eaves of 3 elevations. GM 
Ecology Unit previously accepted the landscaping proposals and provision for loss of bird 
nesting and bat roosting habitat. 
Therefore, a condition would be included for the development to be carried out in 
accordance with the submitted plan would be in compliance with Policy EN6 and EN6/3 of 
the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Highways issues  
Currently the site is accessed via a track which is at a 45 degree angle to Hollins Lane and 
the visibility from this access is restricted by the existing barn building. 
 
It is proposed to utilise the existing unadopted access track adjacent to No. 245 Hollins 
Lane which would be widened to 4.6 metres and provide a 1 metre wide footpath for a 
length of 8 metres into the site. This would allow for a car to enter and leave at the junction 
of Hollins Lane and the existing access with acceptable levels of visibility, and also improve 
pedestrian access to the site.  
 
There is a public footpath which passes along the unadopted access road and continues to 
the south. The proposed works also involve the provision of a 1 metre wide footpath 
adjacent to No. 245 Hollins Lane, which would improve conditions for users of the Public 
Right Of Way. 
 
Within the development site, a large courtyard area would provide turning facilities for all 
three properties (2 proposed dwellings and 1 existing dwelling). An area of hardstanding 
would be provided for bins to be stored on collection days for the proposed residents. 
 
The Traffic Section have raised no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating 
to access, construction traffic management plan, turning facilities, car parking and bin 
storage.  
Therefore, the proposed development would not be detrimental to highway safety and would 
be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1, H2/2 and HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.  
 
Parking  
SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards is 3 spaces per dwelling, which would 
equate to 9 spaces.  
 
The proposed development would provide 3 spaces for barn 1 and 3 spaces for the existing 
dwelling. Barn 2 would have 2 parking spaces and a garage providing 2 parking spaces. 
There would be space within the large courtyard to park vehicles to accommodate any 
visitors. As such, the level of parking provision would be acceptable and the proposed 
development would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan and SPD11.  
 
Response to objectors 

• In terms of impacts on residential amenity and loss of privacy in dwellings and gardens, 
this issue has been covered in the above report.  However, to clarify the proposed 
development would be located on the same footprint as the original barn building and 
the previously approved scheme which was assessed and concluded as policy 
compliant by Planning Control Committee in 2020.  

• Disruption or noise/activity due to the build out of development is not a material planning 

Page 59



consideration and there are controls under the Environmental Protection Act.  

• Landscaping and provision for loss of bird/bat habitat has been submitted and this would 
be included as a condition.  

  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings - 
Site block plan 17/492 SLP; Site location plan 17/492 SBP; Revised proposed 
ground floor/site plan 17/492.05G; Revised proposed first floor/site plan 
17/492.6F; Revised proposed elevations 17/492.13D; New site entrance overlaid 
on existing level survey 17.49219 
and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the 
drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

4. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 

Page 60



Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 

5. Prior to occupation the applicant shall provide 1 EV chargepoint (minimum 7kW*) 
for each dwelling.  
 
*Mode 3, 7kW (32A) single phase, or 22kW (32A) three phase, and for 50kW 
Mode 4 rapid charging may be required. British Standard BS EN 61851-1:2011 to 
be used (note this version is due to be replaced by BS EN 61851-1:2019 on 5 July 
2022).  
Reason.  In accordance with the NPPF, to encourage the uptake of ultra-low 
emission vehicles and ensure the development is sustainable. To safeguard 
residential amenity, public health and quality of life. 

 

6. No works to trees or shrubs shall occur or ivy be removed between the 1st March 
and 31st August in any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably 
experienced ecologist has been carried out immediately prior to clearance and 
written confirmation provided that no active bird nests are present which has been 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 - 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

7. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 
landscaping details submitted on ground floor/site plan 17/492.05G and provision 
for bird/bat boxes shown on proposed elevations plan 17/492.13 (D).  
The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12 months 
from the date the building(s) is first occupied or within the first available tree 
planting season,; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely 
damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be 
replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required 
to be planted.   
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential 
Development,  EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and 
Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving 
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.  

 

8. No development shall commence unless and until surface water drainage 
proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme must be based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the 
National Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in accordance with the 
Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 
2015). This must include assessment of potential SuDS options for surface water 
drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support the chosen 
solution. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also be provided.  
The approved scheme only shall be implemented prior to first occupation and 
thereafter maintained.  
Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the 
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact.  To promote sustainable 
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies 
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - 
Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate 
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF. 

 

9. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 

Page 61



  

• Dilapidation survey, to a scope to be agreed, of the footways and carriageways 
abutting the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required 
following construction of the development, works to the site access and 
boundary and as a result of statutory undertakers connections to the site; 

• Access point and route for demolition and construction traffic from the adopted 
highway; 

• Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 

• A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in the 
vicinity of the site and its access; 

• Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 
of the site, including any requisite phasing of the development to 
accommodate this; 

• Parking on site of operatives' and construction vehicles together with storage 
on site of demolition and construction materials, including any requisite 
phasing of the development to accommodate this; 

• If proposed, site hoardings/gate positions clear of the existing shared 
access/Public Footpath No. 91, Bury, including the provision, where 
necessary, of temporary pedestrian facilities/protection measures; 

• Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not carried on 
the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and measures to 
minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations. 

 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition and construction 
periods and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended 
purpose for the duration of the both periods. 
The areas identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the 
turning/parking of vehicles and storage of construction materials. All highway 
remedial works identified as a result of the dilapidation survey shall be 
implemented to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development hereby approved being occupied. 
Reason.  Information not submitted at application stage. To maintain the integrity 
of the adopted highway, mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by 
the proposed development on the adjacent residential streets, ensure adequate off 
street car parking provision and materials storage arrangements for the duration of 
the demolition and construction periods and ensure that the adopted highways are 
kept free of deposited material from the demolition/ground works operations, in the 
interests of highway safety. pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies 
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 

10. Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, no development shall 
commence unless and until full details of the following have been submitted on a 
topographical survey of the site and adjacent adopted highways to, and agreed 
with, the Local Planning Authority: 
 

• Alteration of the existing vehicular and pedestrian site access arrangements 
and widening of the existing unadopted access/Public Footpath No. 91, Bury, 
onto Hollins Lane to a scope and specification to be agreed, incorporating the 
provision of the new section of footway as shown, pedestrian connection to the 
site and associated works at the existing gate/steps to enable access to the 
proposed bin storage area, new kerb radii, dropped pedestrian crossing point, 
demarcation of the revised limits of the adopted highway, 
relocation/replacement of the affected public right of way pole and direction 
sign and all associated highway and highway drainage remedial works 
required as a result of the development; 

• Scheme of surface water drainage works/hardstanding materials to ensure that 
surface water will not be discharged from the site, increased hardstanding 
areas and widened access onto the adjacent adopted highway. 

 
Page 62



The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme 
and to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority with all highway 
works completed prior to the development hereby approved being first occupied. 
Reason.  To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway 
safety, ensure good highway design and maintain the integrity of the adopted 
highway, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development 
Plan Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development, HT6/2 - 
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict and EN5/1 - New Development and Flood Risk. 

 

11. The turning facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided before the 
development is first occupied and the areas used for the manoeuvring of vehicles 
shall subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at all times 
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan 
Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development and HT6/2 - 
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 

12. The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced and made 
available for use to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the development hereby approved being occupied and thereafter maintained at all 
times.   
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

13. The bin storage arrangements and hardstanding area to be used for the storage of 
bins on collection day indicated on the approved plans shall be implemented to the 
written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to the development hereby 
approved being first occupied and thereafter be maintained available for use at all 
times. 
Reason.  To ensure adequate off-highway bin storage arrangements are provided 
within the curtilage of the site, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury 
Unitary Development Plan Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential 
Development and EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design.  

 

14. The development hereby approved shall use the materials (external facing 
materials/roofing slates) reclaimed from the demolished barn and any other 
external facing materials/roofing tiles shall match. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/2 - Visual Amenity and H2/1 - The Form of New Residential 
Development.  

 

15. Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015, as subsequently amended, no development 
shall be carried out within the terms of Classes A to G of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of 
the Order, without the submission and approval of a relevant planning application. 
Reason. To ensure that future inappropriate alterations or extensions do not occur 
pursuant to policies of the Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161 
253-5320

Page 63



 
 
 

Page 64



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
31 May 2022 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
DELEGATED DECISIONS 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 

DAVID MARNO 
  

 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
The report lists: 
Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to the note the report 
and appendices 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?  Yes   

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 

Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 

regarding risk management 

 
Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: 

 
N/A 

 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
No  

 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 

 
 

 
Wards Affected: 

 

All listed 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 

N/A 

 

Agenda 

Item 

 

REPORT FOR NOTING 
5 

Page 65

Agenda Item 5



TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 

Member/Chair 
Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  

 

 

   

    

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

 
This is a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning 

decisions made by the officers of the Council.  
 
2.0 CONCLUSION  

 
That the item be noted. 

 
 

 

List of Background Papers:-None 
 
Contact Details:- 

 
David Marno, Head of Development Management  

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation 
3 Knowsley Place 
Bury BL9 0EJ 

 
Tel: 0161 253 5291 

Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 
  

 

 

Page 66



Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers

Between and 15/04/2022 20/05/2022

Bury EastWard:

Approve with Conditions19/05/2022

Conversion of first floor from storage (Use Class B8) to form 8 no. flats over two floors; 

including partial raising of wall heads, formation of new roof with the addition of new 

windows/brickwork to front/rear elevations

2 Cook Street, Bury, BL9 0RP

FULApp. Type:67812Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prior Approval Not Required16/05/2022

Prior approval for proposed change of use from commercial (E) to residential (C3)

35 Knowsley Street, Bury, BL9 0ST

PIAPAApp. Type:67939Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Refused04/05/2022

1 no. digital poster display

399 Rochdale Road, Pimhole, Bury, BL9 7DB

ADVApp. Type:67978Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions11/05/2022

Amended opening hours for cafe (Class E): Installation of extraction flue at side/rear; New 

shop front to include shutters

185 Rochdale Road, Pimhole, Bury, BL9 7BB

FULApp. Type:68014Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions11/05/2022

Internally illuminated fasica sign

185 Rochdale Road, Pimhole, Bury, BL9 7BB

ADVApp. Type:68015Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Proposed First Floor Side Extension, New porch

22 Woodgate Avenue, Woodgate Hill, Bury, BL9 7RU

FULApp. Type:68102Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions20/04/2022

Proposed part single storey part two storey rear extension.

68 South Cross Street, Bury, BL9 0RS

FULApp. Type:68106Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions27/04/2022

Single storey side extension

16 Broadbent Drive, Bury, BL9 7TN

FULApp. Type:68119Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Lawful Development10/05/2022

Lawful development certificate for proposed installation of mezzanine floor

Unit B, Moorgate Retail Park, Bury, BL9 7AQ

LDCPApp. Type:68219Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 1 of 12

Page 67



Bury East - MoorsideWard:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Conversion of Nursery/Creche (Class E) to supported living residential (Class C2) including 

alterations to the roof to form a new dormer

125 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 5AY

FULApp. Type:68075Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions10/05/2022

Roof extension/raise roof ridge height to form second floor with 3 no. rear dormers, two 

storey extensions at front/rear, single storey side extension to attached side room, render 

to external elevations and change of use of ground floor from childrens nursery (Class E) 

to form 1 no. residential dwelling (Class C3).

Suleman House, 6 Arley Avenue, Bury, BL9 5HD

FULApp. Type:68107Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Bury East - RedvalesWard:

Approve with Conditions22/04/2022

First floor side extension; Loft conversion with rear dormer

589 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9ST

FULApp. Type:67991Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions17/05/2022

Proposed Single Storey Side Extension

Crossfield House, Crossfield Street, Bury, BL9 9TF

FULApp. Type:68099Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions10/05/2022

Front porch with wc; First floor/single storey rear extension

38 Morley Street, Bury, BL9 9JQ

FULApp. Type:68141Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Two storey side extension; single storey rear extension

97 Radcliffe Road, Bury, BL9 9LD

FULApp. Type:68170Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions09/05/2022

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear

39 Derwent Drive, Bury, BL9 9LS

FULApp. Type:68236Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Bury West - EltonWard:

Approve with Conditions06/05/2022

Removal of existing porch; Removal of existing brick stores; Removal of window to be 

replaced with door; Addition of 4 no. windows to ground floor and first floor roof's; 

Conversion of attic space to bedroom

Brandlesholme Hall, Brandlesholme Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4LS

FULApp. Type:68082Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 2 of 12

Page 68



Approve with Conditions06/05/2022

Listed building consent for removal of existing porch; Removal of existing brick stores; 

Removal of window to be replaced with door; Addition of 4 no. windows to ground floor 

and first floor roof's; Conversion of attic space to bedroom

Brandlesholme Hall, Brandlesholme Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4LS

LBCApp. Type:68083Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions10/05/2022

Single Storey Rear Extension & Canopy to amended Front Entrance with Level Access

14 Freestone Close, Bury, BL8 1US

FULApp. Type:68116Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension22/04/2022

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

10 Vanguard Close, Bury, BL8 1NF

GPDEApp. Type:68148Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions16/05/2022

First floor extension at side.

11 Thornham Close, Bury, BL8 1HH

FULApp. Type:68203Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension19/05/2022

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

18 Tamworth Drive, Bury, BL8 1DP

GPDEApp. Type:68295Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Bury West - WestWard:

Approve with Conditions19/04/2022

Two/single storey rear extension and front porch

8 Lodge Side, Bury, BL8 2SW

FULApp. Type:67982Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions21/04/2022

Single storey extension at rear; Single storey extension at side/front and raised decking 

area at rear.

5 Standring Avenue, Bury, BL8 2DT

FULApp. Type:68142Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prior Approval Not Required03/05/2022

Prior approval for proposed NTQ telecommunications installation proposed 20m High 

Valmont Slimline Climbable Monopole on 6x6 deep concrete base and associated ancillary 

works.

Land to South of Victoria Retail Park (Opposite 69-87 Bolton Road), Bolton Road, Bury, 

BL8 2AH

TELApp. Type:68188Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions05/05/2022

Single storey rear extension and front dormer

3 Ribbleton Close, Bury, BL8 2TH

FULApp. Type:68200Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

North ManorWard:

20/05/2022Page 3 of 12

Page 69



Approve with Conditions26/04/2022

Replace existing post & chainlink fence with picket fencing on grass verge between 

pavement to Brandlesholme Road and cricket field

Greenmount Cricket Club, Brandlesholme Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4DX

FULApp. Type:68011Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions26/04/2022

Two storey side extension; single storey front & rear extensions & detached garden 

store/garage

31 Quarlton Drive, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4JY

FULApp. Type:68098Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions29/04/2022

Single storey side extension; Hip to gable roof extension; rear dormer extension

19 Longsight Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9SL

FULApp. Type:68120Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Two storey extension at side/rear with rear dormer.

2 Mayfield Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9TB

FULApp. Type:68162Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Lawful Development10/05/2022

Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey rear extension

3 Kimble Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4QQ

LDCPApp. Type:68165Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions19/05/2022

Garage and lobby extension at side; Loft conversion with dormer extension at side.

1 Carnforth Drive, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4DQ

FULApp. Type:68187Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions05/05/2022

Erection of new 2.4m high twin wire mesh fencing.

Holly Mount Roman Catholic Primary School, Hollymount Lane, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4HS

FULApp. Type:68223Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions06/05/2022

Porch at rear; Pitched roof to existing front/side extension, 2 No velux roof lights installed 

in existing side extension

34 Byron Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4EN

FULApp. Type:68226Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prestwich - HolyroodWard:

Approve with Conditions22/04/2022

Change of use of shop and conversion of garage to form ground floor flat with new access 

door to side elevation

391A Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1PS

FULApp. Type:67723Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions06/05/2022

Single storey rear extension

21 Oaklands Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1LJ

FULApp. Type:67973Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 4 of 12

Page 70



Lawful Development20/04/2022

Lawful development certificate for proposed demolition of existing single storey flat roof 

side extension and replacing with new single storey flat roofed side extension

89 Parrenthorn Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2RL

LDCPApp. Type:68128Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions25/04/2022

Single storey extension at side and rear

3 Barnard Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6TY

FULApp. Type:68156Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions11/05/2022

First floor balcony at rear

58 Heys Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1JY

FULApp. Type:68157Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions05/05/2022

Single storey extension at front

9 Peveril Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6NS

FULApp. Type:68173Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions17/05/2022

Demolition of existing garage and outbuilding and replacement with single storey side 

extension; external alterations and addition of new windows to ground and first floor and 

2 no. roof lights to side elevation; new gate and fencing at side and steps to rear garden 

and widened access at front

19 Guest Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3DJ

FULApp. Type:68182Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Lawful Development10/05/2022

Lawful development certificate for proposed L-shaped flat roof dormer to the rear and New 

rooflights to the front elevation

59 Bury Old Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6TB

LDCPApp. Type:68212Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prestwich - SedgleyWard:

Approve with Conditions27/04/2022

Single storey rear extension; First floor side extension; Hip to gable roof extension to 

accommodate loft conversion with rear dormer and Juliet balcony

7 Hartley Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0AT

FULApp. Type:67936Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions26/04/2022

Two storey side extension; Two storey/single storey rear extension; Single storey front 

extension for garage and First floor front extension.

53 Bland Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9WG

FULApp. Type:67937Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions26/04/2022

Two story side extension to existing office to extend existing first floor office and to create 

one new office suite on the ground floor.

79 Windsor Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DB

FULApp. Type:68043Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 5 of 12

Page 71



Approve with Conditions22/04/2022

Single storey side/rear extension

37 Parksway, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JB

FULApp. Type:68105Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions06/05/2022

Change of use from residential (Use Class C3) to a mixed residential (C3) and dog 

grooming (Sui Generis), including erection of outbuilding to accommodate the dog 

grooming facility

6 Rectory Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1DE

FULApp. Type:68113Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions12/05/2022

Two storey extension on both sides; Single storey rear extension with balcony above; 

Single storey front extension; Rear dormer extensions; 2m high brick wall to both sides; 

1.5m high wall to front boundary and alterations to driveway including new vehicular 

access.

98 Park Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DY

FULApp. Type:68121Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Refused29/04/2022

Two storey extension to side and single storey extension to rear

22 Newington Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M8 4LT

FULApp. Type:68133Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Two storey extension at rear

50 Fairway, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JH

FULApp. Type:68160Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Refused28/04/2022

Single storey/first floor extension at rear

4A Queens Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0LB

FULApp. Type:68167Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions05/05/2022

Change from flat roof to pitched roof

107 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0FQ

FULApp. Type:68169Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions05/05/2022

Variation of condition 5 following approval of planning permission ref. 65456; to allow the 

property to be used on Saturdays and religious festival days for prayer

45 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0EY

FULApp. Type:68172Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions05/05/2022

Raised ridge height of roof and Two storey extension at rear

4 Castle Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0FR

FULApp. Type:68175Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Single storey extension at front

4 Sheepfoot Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BL

FULApp. Type:68210Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 6 of 12

Page 72



Approve with Conditions19/05/2022

Single storey infill extension at side

11 Castle Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0FR

FULApp. Type:68217Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions13/05/2022

Single storey extensions at side and rear

62 Park Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0FA

FULApp. Type:68250Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prestwich - St Mary'sWard:

Approve with Conditions27/04/2022

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 1 no. replacement dwelling

43 Hilton Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9SA

FULApp. Type:67482Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions05/05/2022

Creation of 8 no. dwellings, with associated hard and soft landscaping

Land between Butterstile Close & Hilton Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RS

FULApp. Type:67816Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions06/05/2022

Change of use of hot food takeaway (sui generis) at no. 4 and bar (sui generis) at no. 6 to 

create a single restaurant (Use Class E) with alterations to shop front

4-6 Clifton Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3HQ

FULApp. Type:68006Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions06/05/2022

Proposed double storey side extension. Proposed rear flat roof dormer.

22 Fitzgerald Close, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TB

FULApp. Type:68094Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Single Storey Rear Extension

64 Agecroft Road West, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RH

FULApp. Type:68115Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Radcliffe - EastWard:

Approve with Conditions26/04/2022

First floor extension at side; new ground floor window to right hand side elevation

57 Greenbank Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4FR

FULApp. Type:68046Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Demolition of conservatory; Single storey extension to rear

8 Shetland Way, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4UH

FULApp. Type:68059Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 7 of 12

Page 73



Approve with Conditions21/04/2022

Outbuilding to the rear (Retrospective)

235 Dumers Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2GE

FULApp. Type:68090Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions06/05/2022

Detached garage to front/side of existing dwelling.

11 Halter Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4BH

FULApp. Type:68131Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Single storey extensions at side and rear.

75 Bury Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2UT

FULApp. Type:68196Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Radcliffe - North and AinsworthWard:

Approve with Conditions20/04/2022

Conversion of existing building to 1 no. dwelling including dormer on the rear

Titus Barn, Bradley Fold Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 5QR

FULApp. Type:68002Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions25/04/2022

Single storey front/rear extension; Garage conversion to living accommodation

15 Browns Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 6RQ

FULApp. Type:68062Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions16/05/2022

Single storey extensions at side and rear.

4 Moss Shaw Way, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4QH

FULApp. Type:68190Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension18/05/2022

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

9 Okehampton Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3LT

GPDEApp. Type:68301Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Radcliffe - WestWard:

Approve with Conditions19/05/2022

Two storey/single storey rear extension; Two storey front extension; Single storey side 

extension

8 Chapeltown Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1YF

FULApp. Type:67846Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions27/04/2022

Listed building consent to replace windows and door on rear elevation and retention of 

new slate roof on rear porch

300 Stand Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1JB

LBCApp. Type:68164Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 8 of 12

Page 74



Approve with Conditions11/05/2022

Two storey extensions at side and rear.

34 Hutchinson Way, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3AB

FULApp. Type:68234Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension19/05/2022

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

28 Elm Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1DR

GPDEApp. Type:68334Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Ramsbottom + Tottington - TottingtonWard:

Approve with Conditions21/04/2022

Detached bungalow to replace stables and barn

Five Acre Farm, 90 Watling Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QW

FULApp. Type:67389Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions03/05/2022

Loft alterations with front dormer

49 Moorside Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3HP

FULApp. Type:68124Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions18/05/2022

Single Storey Rear Extension; Single Storey Extension At Side and First Floor Extension At 

Side.

12 Greenway Close, Bury, BL8 1PE

FULApp. Type:68144Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions11/05/2022

2no. converted shipping containers located on a tarmac surface of one of the outdoor 

social spaces.To be used as hot food outlets for pupils at lunchtime. To be accompanied by 

'sail shade' canopies.

Tottington High School, Laurel Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3LY

FULApp. Type:68163Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Ramsbottom and Tottington - RamsbottomWard:

Approve28/04/2022

Single storey side extension

Norcot, Moorbottom Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NS

FULApp. Type:68084Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions25/04/2022

First floor side and front extension. Conversion of existing single garage to living 

accommodation.

5 Stanford Hall Crescent, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9FD

FULApp. Type:68118Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Listed Building Consent for installation of wrought iron handrail to external entrance steps

26-30 Holcombe Village, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4LZ

LBCApp. Type:68130Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 9 of 12

Page 75



Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Installation of handrail to external entrance steps.

26-30 Holcombe Village, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4LZ

FULApp. Type:68132Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Lawful Development21/04/2022

Lawful development certificate proposed internal alterations and creation of additional 

surgery rooms at first floor. Staff area formed within the roof space.

72 Bridge Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9AG

LDCPApp. Type:68136Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions17/05/2022

Front elevation vellux window to be resized to match the existing rear, existing rear store 

to be demolished and to be re-built of stone construction with synthetic roof slate.

2 Major Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9JH

FULApp. Type:68138Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions16/05/2022

Glass canopy at rear

2 Gleneagles Way, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9QN

FULApp. Type:68155Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions11/05/2022

Replacement garage with roof link to main dwelling; elevation alterations

Redlands, Rawsons Rake, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9HH

FULApp. Type:68159Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions06/05/2022

Two storey extension at rear

56 Stanford Hall Crescent, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9FD

FULApp. Type:68193Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions17/05/2022

Single storey extensions at rear; Dormers at front and rear; New window to top of side 

gable wall

176 Peel Brow, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0AX

FULApp. Type:68221Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions09/05/2022

Single storey extension at rear and Garage conversion

10 Lumb Carr Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9QG

FULApp. Type:68230Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Whitefield + Unsworth - BessesWard:

Lawful Development19/04/2022

Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey rear extension

31 Malham Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8SD

LDCPApp. Type:68127Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions26/04/2022

Single storey / two storey extension at rear; front porch and oriel window to first floor

16 Stanway Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8EG

FULApp. Type:68137Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 10 of 12

Page 76



Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington ParkWard:

Refused25/04/2022

Loft conversion with rear terrace/balcony

57 Hawkstone Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7PR

FULApp. Type:68037Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Refused19/05/2022

Single storey rear extension; Two storey side extension; First floor front extension; Loft 

conversion with roof extension

29 Ferndale Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7GP

FULApp. Type:68049Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Lawful Development03/05/2022

Lawful development certificate for existing single storey - side return kitchen extension 

(10m2) - including hand excavated footings, concrete, blockwork, pitched roof and render.

32 Woodhall Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7QF

LDCEApp. Type:68095Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions09/05/2022

Single storey extension at rear and new pitched roof to existing single storey extension at 

rear

13 Mayfair Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6AR

FULApp. Type:68176Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension19/04/2022

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

8 Dales Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7RL

GPDEApp. Type:68224Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Whitefield + Unsworth - UnsworthWard:

Lawful Development21/04/2022

Lawful development certificate for proposed construction of a flat roofed dormer at the 

rear of the existing dwelling house + the insertion of 1No velux rooflight to the front roof 

slope.

305 Hollins Lane, Bury, BL9 8BD

LDCPApp. Type:68139Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions05/05/2022

Single storey extension at side/rear

6 Mere Close, Bury, BL9 8NY

FULApp. Type:68183Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions17/05/2022

Single storey extension at rear.

68 Hathaway Road, Bury, BL9 8EG

FULApp. Type:68184Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

Approve with Conditions04/05/2022

Two storey extension at rear and first floor extension at side

36 Church Meadow, Bury, BL9 8JF

FULApp. Type:68202Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

20/05/2022Page 11 of 12

Page 77



Approve with Conditions10/05/2022

Single storey front extension and new ramp at front

10 Church Meadow, Bury, BL9 8JF

FULApp. Type:68213Application No.:

Location:

Proposal:

 102 Total Number of Applications Decided:

20/05/2022Page 12 of 12

Page 78



 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
31 May 2022 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
PLANNING APPEALS 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
DAVID MARNO 

  

 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
Planning Appeals:                       

- Lodged                     
- Determined                 

 
Enforcement Appeals 

- Lodged                        
- Determined                  

 
OPTIONS & 

RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to the note the report 

and appendices 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?  Yes   

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 

Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 
regarding risk management 

 
Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: 

 
N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
No  

 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 

Agenda 

Item 

 

REPORT FOR NOTING 
6 

Page 79

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 
 

 
Wards Affected: 

 

All listed 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 

N/A 

 

TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 

Member/Chair 
Ward Members Partners 

 

 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  

 

 

   

    

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

 
This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against 
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that 

have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.  
 

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be 
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that 
were upheld. 

 
2.0 CONCLUSION  

 
That the item be noted. 
 

 
List of Background Papers:-  
 

Contact Details:- 
David Marno, Head of Development Management 

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation, 
3 Knowsley Place ,Bury     BL9 0EJ 
Tel: 0161 253 5291  

Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 

Page 80



Planning Appeals Lodged 

 between 15/04/2022 and 20/05/2022

Proposal:

Grass verge, opposite 401-403 Middleton Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M24 

4QZ

Location:

Prior approval for proposed telecommunications installation comprising 18.0m 

Phase 8 Monopole C/W wrapround cabinet at base and associated ancillary 

works

Applicant:

Appeal lodged: 10/05/2022 

CK Hutchison Networks (UK) Ltd

Decision level: DEL

Recommended Decision: Prior Approval Required an

Appeal Type: Written Representations

Application No.: 67399/TEL

Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 1

Page 81



Planning Appeals Decided 

 between 15/04/2022 and 20/05/2022

Proposal:

5 Shelley Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GHLocation:

Lawful development certificate for proposed change of use of existing dwelling 

house (Class C3(a)) to supported housing scheme for 4 young adults (Class 

C3(b))

Applicant:

Date: 29/04/2022

Safe Hands Care & Support Services Ltd

Decision level: DEL

Recommended Decision: Refuse Appeal type: Written Representations

Application No.: 67603/LDCP Appeal Decision: Dismissed

Page 82


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 26th April 2022
	Minutes

	4 Planning Applications
	Final - Item 01 (1)
	Final - Item 02

	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals

